
 

Jeannie Bruins Lynette Lee Eng Jean Mordo Jan Pepper  Mary Prochnow 
Councilmember Vice Mayor Mayor Councilmember Councilmember 

 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 23, 2018 – 7:00 P.M. 
Community Meeting Chambers 

Los Altos City Hall 
1 North San Antonio Road, Los Altos, California 

 
ESTABLISH QUORUM   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Presented by Junior Girl Scouts, Troop 60402  
 
CHANGES TO THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
Members of the audience may bring to the Council's attention any item that is not on the agenda. Please 
complete a "Request to Speak" form and submit it to the City Clerk. Speakers are generally given two or three 
minutes, at the discretion of the Mayor. Please be advised that, by law, the City Council is unable to discuss or 
take action on issues presented during the Public Comment Period. According to State Law (also known as “the 
Brown Act”) items must first be noticed on the agenda before any discussion or action. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR          
These items will be considered by one motion unless any member of the Council or audience wishes to remove 
an item for discussion. Any item removed from the Consent Calendar for discussion will be handled at the 
discretion of the Mayor. 
 
1. Council Minutes: Approve the minutes of the October 9, 2018 study session and regular meeting 

(S. Henricks) 
 
2. Environmental Consulting Services for 5150 El Camino Real: Authorize the City Manager to 

execute a professional services agreement with David J. Powers & Associates, Inc. to provide 
environmental consulting services related to the development application at 5150 El Camino Real 
for an amount not to exceed $111,000 (Z. Dahl) 

 
3. Los Altos Guidelines for Public Art: Adopt the City of Los Altos Guidelines for Public Art (J. 

Maginot) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF REPORTS AND DIRECTIONS ON FUTURE AGENDA ITEM 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

SPECIAL NOTICES TO THE PUBLIC 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Los Altos will make reasonable arrangements 
to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact 
the City Clerk 72 hours prior to the meeting at (650) 947-2720.   
 
Agendas, Staff Reports and some associated documents for City Council items may be viewed on the Internet at 
http://www.losaltosca.gov/citycouncil/meetings.  Council Meetings are televised live and rebroadcast on Cable 
Channel 26. On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order. If you wish to provide written 
materials, please provide the City Clerk with 10 copies of any document that you would like to submit to the City 
Council for the public record. 
 
Written comments may be submitted to the City Council at council@losaltosca.gov.  To ensure that all members 
of the Council have a chance to consider all viewpoints, you are encouraged to submit written comments no later 
than 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
All public records relating to an open session item on this agenda, which are not exempt from disclosure pursuant 
to the California Public Records Act, and that are distributed to a majority of the legislative body, will be available 
for public inspection at the Office of the City Clerk’s Office, City of Los Altos, located at One North San Antonio 
Road, Los Altos, California at the same time that the public records are distributed or made available to the 
legislative body. Any draft contracts, ordinances and resolutions posted on the Internet site or distributed in 
advance of the Council meeting may not be the final documents approved by the City Council. Contact the City 
Clerk at (650) 947-2720 for the final document. 
 
If you challenge any planning or land use decision made at this meeting in court, you may be limited to raising only 
those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing held at this meeting, or in written correspondence 
delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the public hearing.  Please take notice that the time within which to 
seek judicial review of any final administrative determination reached at this meeting is governed by Section 1094.6 
of the California Code of Civil Procedure. 

http://www.losaltosca.gov/citycouncil/meetings
mailto:council@losaltosca.gov


City Council Minutes 
October 9, 2018 

Page 1 of 4 
 

  

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LOS ALTOS, HELD ON TUESDAY, OCTOBER 9, 2018, 

BEGINNING AT 7:00 P.M. AT LOS ALTOS CITY HALL, 1 NORTH SAN 
ANTONIO ROAD, LOS ALTOS, CALIFORNIA 

 
ESTABLISH QUORUM  
 
PRESENT: Mayor Mordo, Vice Mayor Lee Eng, Councilmembers Bruins, Pepper and Prochnow 
 
ABSENT: None 
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
CHANGES TO THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Los Altos resident Bill Bassett and Mountain View resident Asim Praveen provided public comment 
on items not on the agenda. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR          
 
Vice Mayor Lee Eng pulled item 4. A member of the public pulled item 5.  
 
Action: Upon a motion by Councilmember Pepper, seconded by Councilmember Bruins, the Council 
unanimously approved the Consent Calendar, with the exception of Items 4 and 5, as follows: 
 
1. Council Minutes: Approved the minutes of the September 25, 2018 regular meeting. 

 
2. Parcel Map: 962 Acacia Avenue:  Approved Parcel Map for 962 Acacia Avenue.  

 
3. Quarterly Investment Portfolio Report – Quarter ended June 30, 2018: Received the Investment 

Portfolio Report through June 30, 2018. 
 

4. Ordinance No. 2018-450: Zoning Code Amendments regarding the disposition of City-owned 
property: Adopt Ordinance No. 2018-450 regarding the disposition of City-owned property with 
an “Other Open Space” and “Parks” land use designation – pulled for discussion (see page 3). 

 
5. Ordinance No. 2018-451: Cannabis Prohibition: Adopt Ordinance No. 2018-451 clarifying the 

prohibition of all medical and adult-use commercial cannabis activities and limit cultivation for 
personal use in Los Altos – pulled for discussion (see page 2). 
 
 

6. Ordinance No. 2018-452: Stormwater Pollution Prevention: Adopted Ordinance No. 2018-452 
amending Los Altos Municipal Code Chapter 10.16 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Measures 



City Council Minutes 
October 9, 2018 

Page 2 of 4 
 

  

to reflect current stormwater pollution prevention requirements for land development projects 
mandated by the Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

 
7. Annual Concrete Repair Project, TS-01005: Authorized the City Manager to execute a change 

order of up to $78,308.00 utilizing remaining funds in the Annual Concrete Repair Project, TS-
01005. 

 
8. Los Altos Village Association Tree Lighting Funding Request: Approved the $9,000 expenditure 

request by LAVA to be used towards the purchase of LED light strands for the trees along Main 
Street, State Street, and the parking plazas in Downtown Los Altos. 

 
ITEM REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
5. Ordinance No. 2018-451: Cannabis Prohibition: Adopt Ordinance No. 2018-451 clarifying the 

prohibition of all medical and adult-use commercial cannabis activities and limit cultivation for 
personal use in Los Altos 

 
Public Comment: Los Altos resident Ken Elchert provided public comment. 
 
Action: Upon a motion by Councilmember Bruins, seconded by Councilmember Pepper, the Council 
adopted Ordinance No. 2018-541 clarifying the prohibition of all medical and adult-use commercial 
cannabis activities and limit cultivation for personal use in Los Altos by the following vote: AYES: 
Bruins, Lee Eng, Mordo, Pepper; NOES: Prochnow; ABSTAIN: None; ABSENT: None 
 
Direction: Council directed staff to craft a section to address ventilation, nuisance and odor issues and 
to move the amended Ordinance through the regular planning process as soon as possible. City 
Attorney will provide the Council with the amendment language via email prior to presenting to the 
Planning Commission to ensure it meets Council’s expectations. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
9. Stormwater Fee Report: Approve the structure of the Stormwater Fees and findings of the 

Stormwater Fee Report; authorize staff to work in consultation with the City Attorney and the 
Rate Consultant to finalize the Stormwater Fee Report with such changes deemed advisable and 
not altering the structure of the Stormwater Fees; adopt Resolution No. 2018-39 initiating a 
proceeding to obtain approval of a property-related fee conforming to Article XIII D, Section 6 
of the Constitution; adopt Resolution 2018-40 adopting ballot procedures for a property related 
fee conforming to Article XIII D, Section 6 of the Constitution 

 
Public Works Director Susanna Chan and Jerry Bradshaw of SCI Consulting Group presented the 
report. 
 
Public Comment: Los Altos resident Neha Deysai provided public comment. 
 
Action: Upon a motion by Councilmember Bruins, seconded by Vice Mayor Lee Eng, the Council 
unanimously approved the structure of the Stormwater Fees and findings of the Stormwater Fee 



City Council Minutes 
October 9, 2018 

Page 3 of 4 
 

  

Report; authorized staff to work in consultation with the City Attorney and the Rate Consultant to 
finalize the Stormwater Fee Report with such changes deemed advisable and not altering the structure 
of the Stormwater Fees; adopted Resolution No. 2018-39 initiating a proceeding to obtain approval 
of a property-related fee conforming to Article XIII D, Section 6 of the Constitution; adopted 
Resolution 2018-40 adopting ballot procedures for a property related fee conforming to Article XIII 
D, Section 6 of the Constitution. 
 
ITEM REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
4. Ordinance No. 2018-450: Zoning Code Amendments regarding the disposition of City-owned 

property: Adopt Ordinance No. 2018-450 regarding the disposition of City-owned property with 
an “Other Open Space” and “Parks” land use designation 
 

Vice Mayor Lee Eng expressed concerns that the Ordinance does not protect all public lands. 
 

Action: Upon a motion by Councilmember Bruins, seconded by Councilmember Prochnow, the 
Council adopted Ordinance No. 2018-450 regarding the disposition of City-owned property with an 
“Other Open Space” and “Parks” land use designation by the following vote: AYES: Bruins, Mordo, 
Pepper, Prochnow; NOES: Lee Eng; ABSTAIN: None; ABSENT: None. 

 
STUDY SESSION 
 
10. Review of Floor Area Ratios: Discuss and provide direction to staff 
 
Community Development Director Jon Biggs introduced the item. 
 
Public Comment: The following individuals provided public comment: Huascar Castro from Silicon 
Valley at Home (SV@Home) and Los Altos residents Anita Enander and Sue Russell.  
 
Direction: City Council directed staff to coordinate a study session of the Planning Commission on 
Floor Area Ratios (FAR) in concert with the recommendations provided by the Downtown Buildings 
Committee to identify lessons learned and to have the Commission evaluate options and develop draft 
recommendations on the various tools that can be implemented to achieve the desired look and feel 
of future development in the City. 
 
INFORMATION ONLY ITEM 
 
A. City Manager-approved purchases between $50,000 and $75,000 for the period July 1 – September 

30, 2018 
 
B. City-owned property table 

 
Direction: City Council directed staff to begin the process of cleaning up parcels listed in the table 
that have inappropriate land use designations, designating appropriately as “Park” or “Other Open 
Space” and, where necessary, taking these clean-ups through the planning process. 
 



City Council Minutes 
October 9, 2018 

Page 4 of 4 
 

  

COUNCIL/STAFF REPORTS AND DIRECTIONS ON FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Councilmember Prochnow reported that she attended the Youth and Senior Commission meetings 
on October 1, 2018. 
 
Vice Mayor Lee Eng reported that she attended her usual Commission meetings. 
 
Councilmember Bruins reminded the Council that there is a Waymo Community Forum at Grant 
Park on October 17, 2018 from 12:30 to 2:30 p.m. She reported that she attended her usual meetings 
and held Open Office Hours. She further reported that the American Legion would be celebrating its 
80th Anniversary in November 2018 and requested that the mayor issue a proclamation. Finally, she 
updated the City Council on the development of a Housing Incentive Pool (HIP) program by 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC). 
 
Councilmember Pepper reported that she attended the Sierra Club Guardians of Nature event honoring 
Santa Clara County Supervisor Joe Simitian and that she moderated a League of Women Voters 
candidate forum for the Los Altos School District. 
 
City Manager Jordan reminded the Council that its next meeting will be October 23, 2018 and will 
include joint meetings with six of the City Commissions beginning at 5:00 p.m. and a regular meeting 
consisting of a short Consent Calendar. He also reminded the Council that multiple closed sessions 
will take place beginning at 5:00 p.m. on October 30, 2018. 
  
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Mordo adjourned the meeting at 9:18p.m. 
 

       ____________________________ 
 Jean Mordo, MAYOR 
 
_______________________________ 
Jon Maginot, CMC, CITY CLERK 



 
 

AGENDA REPORT SUMMARY 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Agenda Item # 2 

Meeting Date: October 23, 2018 
 
Subject: Environmental Consulting Services for 5150 El Camino Real 
 
Prepared by:  Zachary Dahl, Planning Services Manager  
Reviewed by:  Jon Biggs, Community Development Director  
Approved by:  Chris Jordan, City Manager 
 
Attachment(s):   
None 
 
Initiated by: 
Staff  
 
Previous Council Consideration: 
None 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None  
 
Environmental Review: 
Not applicable 
 
Policy Question(s) for Council Consideration: 

• Should the City retain an environmental consultant to assist in the preparation of the initial 
study and mitigated negative declaration for the new development application at 5150 El 
Camino Real? 

 
Summary: 

• A development application for a new multiple-family project with 197 units at 5150 El Camino 
Real was submitted to the City 

• To assist in the preparation of an initial study and mitigated negative declaration as required 
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City solicited a proposal from 
David J. Powers & Associates, the City’s on-call CEQA consultant  

 
Staff Recommendation: 
Authorize the City Manager to execute a professional services agreement with David J. Powers & 
Associates, Inc. to provide environmental consulting services related to the development application 
at 5150 El Camino Real for an amount not to exceed $111,000   
  



 
 

Subject:   Environmental Consulting Services for 5150 El Camino Real 
 
            

 
October 23, 2018  Page 2 

 
Purpose 
Retain David J. Powers & Associates, Inc., the City’s on-call CEQA consultant, to prepare an initial 
study and mitigated negative declaration for the new development proposal at 5150 El Camino Real.  
 
Background 
In May 2017, the City issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for environmental (CEQA) 
consulting services to establish a list of qualified firms to assist the City with the preparation of 
technical environmental studies, preliminary environmental assessments, initial studies, mitigated 
negative declarations and environmental impact reports. Following an internal review of consultant 
qualifications and interviews of the top firms, the City selected David J. Powers & Associates, Inc. 
and EMC Planning Group as the City’s two on-call environmental consultants. These two firms 
function as an extension of City staff to provide technical assistance and support on tasks related to 
environmental review under CEQA. 
 
Discussion/Analysis 
In anticipation of the new development proposal at 5150 El Camino Real, staff requested a proposal 
from David J. Powers & Associates, Inc. to prepare an initial study and mitigated negative declaration 
for the project. The proposal includes the preparation of technical studies to evaluate traffic, parking, 
noise, air quality and cultural resources. A 15-percent (15%) contingency has also been included to 
cover any unanticipated studies or additional work that may be necessary to complete the project’s 
environmental review. The costs breakdown as follows:  
 
 Technical Studies      $60,835 
 Environmental Consultant   $35,685     

15-percent (15%) contingency   $14,480 
Total     $111,000 

       
As specified in the City’s fee schedule, a project applicant is required to reimburse the City for all 
expenses related to preparation of the initial study and mitigated negative declaration, so there will not 
be any fiscal impact to the City for retaining David J. Powers & Associates, Inc. to do this work. 
 
If approved, staff will work with the consultant to initiate the environmental review process and get 
started on preparing the initial study and mitigated negative declaration.  It is anticipated to take 18 to 
20 weeks to have the initial study and mitigated declaration ready to publish for public review and 
comment. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Subject:   Environmental Consulting Services for 5150 El Camino Real 
 
            

 
October 23, 2018  Page 3 

 
Options 
 

1) Authorize the City Manager to execute a professional services agreement with David J. Powers 
& Associates, Inc. to provide environmental consulting services 
 

Advantages: The City will utilize a highly experienced environmental consulting firm to 
assist in the preparation of the initial study and mitigated negative declaration 
for the new development proposal at 5150 El Camino Real 

 
Disadvantages: None 
 
2) Do not authorize the City Manager to execute a professional services agreement with David 

J. Powers & Associates, Inc. to provide environmental consulting services 
 
Advantages: None 
 
Disadvantages: The City will not utilize a highly experienced environmental consulting firm to 

assist in the preparation of the initial study and mitigated negative declaration 
for the new development proposal at 5150 El Camino Real 

 
Recommendation 
The staff recommends Option 1. 



 
 

AGENDA REPORT SUMMARY 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Agenda Item # 3 

Meeting Date: October 23, 2018 
 
Subject: Los Altos Guidelines for Public Art 
 
Prepared by:  Jon Maginot, Deputy City Manager 
Approved by:  Chris Jordan, City Manager 
 
Attachment(s):   
1. Guidelines for Public Art 
 
Initiated by: 
Public Arts Commission 
 
Previous Council Consideration: 
October 23, 2018 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None  
 
Environmental Review: 
Not applicable  
 
Policy Question(s) for Council Consideration: 

• Does the Council wish to adopt guidelines for the implementation of the City’s Public Art 
Program? 

 
Summary: 

• Administration of the City’s Public Art Program is currently accomplished on an ad hoc basis 
with no plan for maintenance and/or removal of artwork 

• The Guidelines for Public Art will establish procedures for the donation of art to the City, 
maintenance of public art and the removal of public art 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
Adopt the City of Los Altos Guidelines for Public Art  
  



 
 

Subject:   Los Altos Guidelines for Public Art 
 
            

 
October 23, 2018  Page 2 

 
Purpose 
To adopt the City of Los Altos Guidelines for Public Art. 
 
Background 
In November 2017, the Council received a presentation of the draft Public Art Master Plan. At that 
time, a majority of the Council expressed concerns with certain elements of the Plan and received the 
Plan without approving the recommendations contained within.  Council further directed the Public 
Arts Commission (PAC) to evaluate individual elements of the Plan and determine which elements 
could be moved forward as projects. The Council then provided further input and guidance to the 
Commission in a joint session on February 13, 2018. 
 
Discussion/Analysis 
Since meeting with the Council in February 2018, the PAC has worked to present those elements the 
Commission feels are most needed for the Public Art Program. On July 10, 2018, the Council adopted 
the first of these elements which was the Public Art Development Fee.   
 
The PAC now recommends the Council review and adopt the Guidelines for Public Art to establish 
policies and procedures for the implementation of the Public Art Program. The Guidelines contain 
the following elements: 
 

1. An overview of the Public Art Program in Los Altos 
2. The role and responsibilities of the Public Arts Commission 
3. Procedures for the donation of Public Art to the City 
4. Procedures for the maintenance of Public Art 
5. Procedures for decommissioning and removing Public Art 

 
Many of the elements of the Guidelines have been reviewed and/or adopted by Council in the past 
and are now being brought together in one document to guide the City’s Public Art Program moving 
into the future.     
 
The Council and PAC will meet in a joint session on October 23, 2018 and will discuss the draft 
Guidelines at that time. 
 
Options 
 

1) Adopt the Guidelines for Public Art 
 
Advantages: Establishes policies and procedures for the implementation and 

standardization of the City’s Public Art Program 
 



 
 

Subject:   Los Altos Guidelines for Public Art 
 
            

 
October 23, 2018  Page 3 

 
Disadvantages: None identified 
 
2) Provide revisions to the Public Arts Commission 
 
Advantages: May provide needed adjustments to the Guidelines 
 
Disadvantages: Will delay adoption of the Guidelines 

 
3) Do not adopt the Guidelines 
 
Advantages: None identified 
 
Disadvantages: Will not establish policies and procedures for implementation of the City’s 

Public Art Program; installation and maintenance of Public Art will continue 
to be on an ad hoc basis 

 
Recommendation 
The Public Arts Commission and staff recommend Option 1. 



 

  

The City of Los Altos  

Public Arts Commission 

August, 2018 

City of Los Altos:                
Guidelines for Public Art 

ATTACHMENT 1 



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

Section 1:  
City of Los Altos Public Art Program Overview 
 
Mission and Vision 
The mission of the Public Arts Commission is to advise the City Council on incorporating public art that 
improves the aesthetic quality of public spaces and “brands” the City of Los Altos as a unique and 
vibrant community. 
 
The vision of the Los Altos Public Arts Program is to enrich the lives of all Los Altos citizens through 
honoring our City’s history, celebrating its diverse culture and creating rich experiences for residents and 
visitors through art in city planning, initiatives, public spaces and infrastructure. 
 
These goals and guiding principals were established to guide the future of our public art and enable us 
to find a common ground that defines how we see ourselves. In fact, the story of our community can be 
told by public art. Our civic infrastructure should embody our communal desire to ensure our City is 
safe, prosperous and welcoming to all. Public art extends our reach and tells our story to current and 
future residents and business owners who want to know what Los Altos represents. 
 
The following plan is a result of collaboration between the Public Arts Commission, City of Los Altos and 
most importantly, the City’s residents and business owners. By the end of the development process, 
more than 1,000 Los Altans shared their vision about the future of public art in our City. 
 
Focus and Strategy 
These guidelines are intended to provide strategic and tactical direction for public art throughout the 
City.  
 
Goals & Guiding Principles 

• Enhance community’s diverse character and solidify attachment to place 
• Pursue excellence in urban design and public arts to enhance the aesthetic environment of our 

public spaces 
• Create community “brand” 
• Shape the quality of life and spirit 
• Build a stronger sense of place and identity 
• Represent pride and community collaboration 
• Create economic vitality by invigorating public spaces 
• Enrich the community experience  

 
WHAT IS PUBLIC ART IN LOS ALTOS? 
“Works of art” shall mean all forms of originally created visual art, whether contemporary or traditional. 
The creator of the work of art shall be a practitioner in the visual arts who is recognized as a professional 
of serious intent and who is not a member of the project architect or landscape architect firm. 
 
Works of public art may include: 

• Sculpture: free-standing, wall supported or suspended; kinetic, lighted, electronic; in any 
appropriate material or combination of materials; 



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

• Murals or portable paintings: in any appropriate material or variety of materials, with or 
without collage or the addition of non-traditional materials or means; 

• Photography: original works of graphic art, limited edition prints, works on/of paper, original 
paintings; 

• Waterworks, neon, glass, mosaics, or any combination of forms of media including sound, 
literary elements, holographic images, or hybrids of media and new genres; or 

• Furnishings or fixtures: including but not limited to gates, railings, streetlights or seating, if 
created by artists as unique elements. 
 

Ineligible Works of Art: 
• Directional elements (including “way finders”) such as super graphics, signage or color coding 

except where these elements are integral parts of an overall design created by a professional 
visual artist; 

• "Art objects" which are mass produced or of standard manufacture, such as playground 
equipment, fountains or statuary elements, unless incorporated into an artwork by a project 
artist; 

• Reproductions by mechanical or other means, of original works of art; 
• Decorative, ornamental, architectural or functional elements which are designed by the building 

architect, as opposed to elements created by an artist commissioned for that purpose; 
• Landscape architecture and landscape gardening except where these elements are designed by 

a professional visual artist and/or are an integral part of the artwork by the artist; or 
• Art that signifies a political or religious statement. 

  



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

Section 2:  
Public Arts Commission Roles and Responsibilities 
 
MISSION AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
The Los Altos Public Arts Commission, established in 2011, advises the Los Altos City Council in all 
matters pertaining to City-sponsored public arts programs. The Commission’s primary goal is to increase 
the public’s awareness of all visual arts including, but not limited to, exhibition of sculpture, paintings, 
mosaics, photography and video. 
 
As a decision-making body within the Los Altos City government, the Los Altos Public Arts Commission is 
responsible for interpreting and reviewing proposed public art projects based on the criteria identified 
in these policies and procedures, and making recommendations to the Los Altos City Council based on 
the following criteria: 

• Determining the “appropriateness” of a piece of art for our City; 
• Project site selection; 
• Conservation and maintenance of artworks; 
• Gifts and loans;  
• Deaccession and removal. 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
The Los Altos Public Arts Commission is comprised of seven Los Altos residents, each serving a four-year 
term with an option for a renewable, one-time additional term. Commission members are appointed by 
the Los Altos City Council. 
 
PROCEDURES 
All Commission meetings are public. Meetings are typically held the 4th Thursday of every month; dates, 
times and locations are posted on the City’s website. Decisions made during the meeting are based on a 
simple majority vote of the Commission. 
 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
Commissioners will declare any and all conflicts of interest for all projects and artwork under 
consideration at the beginning of their meetings. A conflict of interest exists if a Commissioner, an 
organization the Commissioner is associated with, as a staff or board member, or a Commissioner’s 
family member has the potential to gain financially from the project under consideration by the 
Commission. To promote public confidence in this process, a Commissioner may also consider declaring 
a conflict if he/she thinks there may be a perception that they have a conflict. If a Commissioner has a 
conflict, he/she must not participate in the Commission’s discussion or decision regarding the project. 
They must also refrain from discussion about the project and from influencing fellow Commissioners. 
 
LOS ALTOS PUBLIC ARTS COMMISSION STAFF LIAISON 
The Public Arts Commission Staff Liaison oversees the Public Arts Program and participates in the 
planning, purchasing, commissioning, donation, placement, handling, conservation and maintenance of 
public artwork under the jurisdiction of all City departments.  
 
 
 



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

CITY DEPARTMENTS 
City departments may recommend projects for possible funding or staff support by the Public Arts 
Program. They may also include side proposals and funding in their own Capital Improvement Plans. City 
departments are also accountable to the City’s public art policies and procedures. Public art projects 
under the jurisdiction of any City department must be reviewed and approved according to the public 
art policies and procedures contained within this document. 
 
CITY INDEPENDENT BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
Independent Boards and Commissions may recommend their projects for possible support by the Public 
Arts Program. Public art projects developed in partnership with these entities must be reviewed and 
approved according to the public art policies and procedures contained within this document. City staff 
coordinating public art projects will work closely with the staff of these Boards and Commissions when 
working in partnership with them or placing projects on their property. Agreements with these Boards 
and Commissions will reflect and include the policies and procedures of all partners. 
 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
The Mayor and City Council are tasked with the following: 

• The approval of the budget for the Public Arts Program, as well as for any other budgets for 
public art; 

• The appointment of Los Altos Public Arts Commissioners; and 
• The approval of all contracts in excess of $75,000. 

 
ARTISTS 
Artists may be invited to submit Requests for Proposals (RFPs) for the creation of works of public art.  
 
PRIVATE SITE OWNERS AND DEVELOPERS 
Private site owners and developers must also comply with the City’s public art policies and procedures 
when working in partnership with the Los Altos Public Arts Program. City staff coordinating public art 
projects will work closely with the representatives of these private sites and adhere to their policies 
when working in partnership or placing projects on their property. Agreements entered into with private 
site owners must reflect and include the policies and procedures of all partners. 
 
  



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

Section 3:  
Policies and Procedures for the Donation of Public Art 
 
OBJECTIVE 
All public art pieces donated to the City of Los Altos must come with a plan that specifies the funding 
and delivery of ongoing maintenance or the resolution accepting the public art must identify how 
maintenance of the donated public art will be funded. 
 
DONATION REQUIREMENTS 
The City will consider donations on the following basis: 

• The donation contributes to and enhances the City’s public art collection; 
• The donation meets a high standard of quality and is appropriate and meaningful to the 

community; 
• The donation follows required City procedures including the submission of a Donation Proposal 

and a Maintenance Plan. Donation Proposal requirements are included in this policy; 
• The requirements for the Maintenance Plan can be found in the Los Altos Public 

Arts Program Policy and Procedure for Maintenance proposed policy; 
• The donation is made with the understanding that no City funds will be required for production, 

site placement, installation or ongoing operations and maintenance of the work without prior 
approval of the City of Los Altos; 

• The donation proposal includes a plan to fund and deliver ongoing operations and maintenance; 
and 

• The donation proposal is reviewed and endorsed by the Los Altos Public Arts Commission and 
City department accepting the art and approved by the City Council. 

 
The City will not accept a donation of artwork until all funds for its development, fabrication, site 
location and installation have been secured. The City will consider the following types of donation 
proposals for artworks on City-owned property: 

• An already completed work of art; 
• A commissioned artwork by a specific artist or artists to be created especially for a 

City-owned property; or 
• Donations of creative or innovative public art projects. 

 
ROLE OF THE SPONSOR OR SUPPORTING ARTIST 
A donation of artwork must have a sponsor or co-sponsors who will prepare and present a donation 
proposal. The sponsor’s principal roles are to state the intent of the donation and be responsible for 
raising or providing the funding for its production, acquisition, installation and maintenance. Community 
groups or corporations can act as a sponsor, provided they can demonstrate community support for the 
proposal. Demonstrating community support reinforces the public nature of the proposal. 
 
DONATION PROPOSAL PROCEDURES 
All offers of artwork proposed for property under City jurisdiction must be made in writing and 
submitted by the sponsor to the Los Altos Public Arts Commission. The donation proposal must contain 
the following for an already completed work, a commissioned artwork, or a creative/innovative public 
art project: 

1. Rationale for the intent, purpose, and added value to the City of the proposed gift; 



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

2. Brief statement about the artwork or project and biographical information about the artist, 
including resume and supporting materials; 

3. Project timeline; 
4. Site plan that shows the proposed location of the artwork, a photograph of the proposed 

installation site, and surrounding environment; 
5. Visual presentation of the artwork on the proposed site(s), including drawings, photographs, 

and models of the proposed work with scale and materials indicated; 
6. Maintenance plan, including operations and maintenance information citing requirements for 

ongoing maintenance and associated costs; 
7. Documentation of artwork ownership and statement of authority and intent to transfer 

ownership to the City. 
 
The following additional information must be provided for a commissioned artwork or a 
creative/innovative project to be created specifically for a City-owned property: 

8. Detailed budget, with costs for the project including site preparation, installation, and insurance 
that meets City requirements; and 

9. Funding committed to date and proposed source(s) of funds. 
 
DONATION PROPOSAL REVIEW PROCESS 
All proposals for donations of artwork must follow a three-stage review process: 

1. Review by the Los Altos City Staff and the Los Altos Public Arts Commission utilizing the 
Donation Review Criteria below; 

2. Evaluation by a qualified professional public art conservator and/or arts professional such as a 
museum director, curator, historian, or writer/critic; and 

3. Recommendations and findings from the conservator and/ or arts professional to be presented 
to both City Staff and the Los Altos Public Arts Commission, who will prepare a report and 
request to be submitted to the City Council for approval. 

 
If a donation is made that is valued at $10,000 or less, the Los Altos Public Arts Commission may 
recommend acceptance of the donation by the City Manager. If the donation is valued in excess of 
$10,000, the acceptance of the donation must be decided upon by the Los Altos City Council. If the Los 
Altos Public Arts Commission decides against accepting the proposal, City Staff, in collaboration with the 
Los Altos Public Arts Commission, will notify and provide a rationale to the sponsor and the artist. 
 
DONATION PROPOSAL REVIEW CRITERIA 
The donation review process will include, but will not be limited to, the following: 

• City-owned Property – Donated public artwork must be located on City-owned or City-managed 
property; 

• Relevance and Site Context – Works of art must be appropriate for the proposed location and its 
surroundings, and/or complement the architecture, topography, history, and social dynamic of 
the location in which it is placed; 

• Artist and Artwork Quality – The artist demonstrates the ability and potential to execute the 
proposed artwork, based on previous artistic achievement and experience. The artwork must 
enhance the City’s public art collection; 

• Physical Durability – The artwork will be assessed for long-term durability against theft, 
vandalism, and weather; 

• Public Safety and Liability – The artwork will be assessed for any public safety concerns, as well 
as for any potential liabilities for the City; 



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

• Sustainability – Consideration will be given to the environmental impact and sustainability of the 
proposed artwork, including its operations and maintenance requirements/costs; and 

• Legal – Proposed terms of donation, legal title, copyright authenticity, artist’s right to 
reproduce, liability, and other issues as deemed appropriate will be considered. 

 
Memorial Gifts 
Memorial gifts will have an additional review process, which will include, but will not be limited to, the 
following: 

• Timeframe – The person or event being memorialized must be deemed significant enough to 
merit such an honor. The person so honored will have been deceased for a minimum of twenty-
five years. Events will have taken place at least twenty-five years prior to consideration of a 
proposed memorial gift; 

• Community Value and Timelessness – The person or event being memorialized represents broad 
community values and will be meaningful to future generations; and 

• Location – The location under consideration is an appropriate setting for the memorial; generally, 
there should be some specific geographic justification for the memorial being located at a specific 
site. 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF THE ARTWORK 
If the proposal is accepted by the City of Los Altos, a formal agreement will be negotiated outlining the 
responsibilities of each party (the City, the sponsor(s), the artist, and outside contractors, where 
applicable). 
 
The agreement will address project funding, insurance, location site, installation, operations and 
maintenance, project supervision, vandalism, the right of removal or transfer, public safety, and other 
issues as necessary. 
 
The City of Los Altos will be the owner of the artwork and reserves the right to remove or alter the work 
to ensure public safety or because of any other City concerns. The City upholds copyright law and the 
Visual Artists Rights Act of 1990. Any changes will be made in consultation with the artist and sponsor(s). 
The completed and installed artwork will be accessioned and added to the City’s inventory list and 
master database with all accompanying documentation. 
 
 



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

Section 4:  
Policies and Procedures for the Maintenance of Public Art 
 
OBJECTIVE 
The Los Altos Public Art Maintenance Program will use monies in the Los Altos Public Art Fund. This 
account will be funded by monies collected through the Public Art Fund Ordinance. 
 
The Public Art Maintenance Program will be administered by the City of Los Altos in collaboration with 
the Los Altos Public Arts Commission through yearly evaluation and planning for maintenance of the 
existing collection. 
 
The Program addresses: 

• Accessioning and inventorying the City’s collection of public art; 
• Conducting semiannual Survey and Condition Assessments of all work in the collection, both 

historic and contemporary; 
• Preparing a semiannual Public Art Maintenance Plan; and 
• Overseeing routine maintenance and special conservation treatment of the City’s public art 

collection. 
 
Every five years, the Los Altos Public Arts Commission will conduct an assessment of the condition of all 
public art with a qualified professional conservator and develop a prioritized list of works in need of 
conservation or maintenance. This list will be the basis of the semiannual Public Art Maintenance Plan. 
 
Under this plan, trained City maintenance staff, with the approval and direction of the Los Altos Public 
Arts Commission, may carry out routine maintenance. For work in need of a higher level of 
maintenance, specialized care, or conservation treatment, the Program will utilize the maintenance 
funds available under the Ordinance held in the Public Arts Administrative Account. 
 
MAINTENANCE IN ADVANCE OF CREATION 
Installation, maintenance and care of public art begin before an artwork is created. During the design 
phase or when a donation is initiated, the City, artist or sponsor will review and analyze their design 
proposal and advise on maintenance and operations of the artwork. 
 
On behalf of the City, artist or sponsor, the appropriate party will submit a Maintenance Plan to the City 
of Los Altos and the Los Altos Public Arts Commission, who will review and then catalogue any tasks 
associated with maintenance of the artwork. 
 
The Maintenance Plan will enable the City, in collaboration with the Los Altos Public Arts Commission, 
to: 

• Evaluate the quality and sustainability of the proposed or existing public artwork; 
• Establish maintenance requirements, assign schedules and identify potential costs; and 
• Determine if the City of Los Altos should accept or decline the design proposal and/or public 

artwork. 
 
To produce the Maintenance Plan, the artist should examine and render an opinion on the following: 

• Durability; 



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

• Type and integrity of materials; 
• Construction/fabrication technique; 
• Internal supports, anchoring and joining, and footings; 
• Landscaping; 
• Vulnerable and delicate elements; 
• Drainage of artwork; 
• Potentially dangerous elements; 
• Security; 
• Location; 
• Environment; 
• Whether the design encourages/discourages interaction; and 
• Effects of skateboarding, graffiti and any other potentially damaging activities. 

 
The Maintenance Plan includes: 

• A record of the artist’s intentions for the work of art; 
• Recommendations to mitigate potential problems discovered during the examination; 
• Notes about how the artist would like the work of art to age; 
• An itemization of long-range considerations and care, highlighting maintenance and the 

anticipated needs for periodic conservation treatment or repairs; and 
• Identification of the life span of the artwork and a prognosis of its durability in consideration of 

that life span. 
 
LIFESPAN OF ARTWORK 
This life span will be selected from one of four categories: 

1) Temporary: up to 5 years 
2) Mid-term: 5–25 years 
3) Long-term: 25+ years 
4) Permanent or Site-Integrated:  part of the site and/or structure and cannot be removed. 

 
UTILIZATION OF THE MAINTENANCE PLAN 
The Maintenance Plan will be used: 

• To advise Los Altos Public Arts Commission, City Department Directors, and others who must 
review and approve design proposals or accept or decline donated public artwork; 

• To troubleshoot the production of construction drawings, the fabrication of the artwork and the 
preparation of the site; 

• To follow-up on the artist’s recommendations; and 
• As reference during the post-fabrication/post-installation inspection to prepare a final report 

and a punch list to complete the project. 
 
The City of Los Altos and the Los Altos Public Arts Commission, professional conservators and public 
artists will strive to address the recommendations in the Maintenance Plan without unduly interfering 
with the aesthetic intent of the proposed public art. 
 
PROCEDURES DURING THE PUBLIC ART MAINTENANCE PROGRAM 
The Public Art Maintenance Program becomes actively involved with the Capital Project’s public artwork 
and the Los Altos Public Arts Commission at the end of the Commission phase. The City of Los Altos, in 



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

collaboration with the Los Altos Public Arts Commission, participates in the Post- Fabrication Inspection 
and/or Post-Installation Inspection that is led by the Los Altos Public Arts Commission. 
 
POST-FABRICATION/POST-INSTALLATION INSPECTION 
The Post-Fabrication/Post-Installation Inspection will be based upon and follow-up on the Maintenance 
Plan that was carried out during the design phase to include the following: 

• Ensure that recommendations made in the Maintenance Plan and during fabrication were 
followed; 

• Confirm that the artwork is executed as proposed and agreed upon; 
• Confirm that there are no missing or incomplete elements; 
• Establish that materials quality and stability are acceptable; 
• Establish that fabrication quality and stability are acceptable; 
• Confirm that installation is stable and secure; 
• Confirm that stainless steel is fully and properly “passivated”; 
• Confirm that, if required, protective coatings have been applied; 
• Ensure that warranties for electronic and other media are submitted as necessary; 
• Identify any remaining vulnerabilities; 
• Confirm no new damage resulted from installation process; 
• Ensure that the maintenance and operations plan is accurate and amend as needed;  and 
• Confirm that the plaque/public notice meets program guidelines and is properly installed. 

 
  



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

Section 5:  
Policies and Procedures for Artwork Decommissioning and 
Removal  
 
OBJECTIVE 
Maintain an artwork decommissioning and removal program that supports and continues to refresh our 
high-quality, City-owned public art collection. 

• Eliminate artworks that are unsafe, irreparable, or no longer meet the needs of the City of Los 
Altos. 

• Respect the creative rights of artists. 
• Implement an artwork decommissioning process that is straightforward and simple. 
• Support an efficient workload for staff. 

 
DEFINITIONS 
The term Decommission means to remove a work from the City’s collection by selling, donating or 
destroying it. 
 
LIFE SPANS 

• Temporary means up to 5 years. 
• Medium-Term means 5 to 25 years. 
• Long-Term means 25+ years. 
• Permanent or Site-Integrated means part of the site and/or structure and cannot be removed. 

 
GENERAL POLICIES 
Integrity of Artworks 
The goal of the Los Altos Public Arts Program is to maintain the ongoing integrity of the artwork as well 
as the sites for which they were created, to the greatest extent feasible, in accordance with the artist’s 
original intentions, and consistent with the rights afforded by the 1990 Visual Artists Rights Act. 
 
Access to Artworks 
The City provides the public with access to artworks however; the City may limit availability due to 
circumstances such as funding, public safety, display space and decommissioning processes. 
 
Artwork Life Span 
Life spans have been assigned to the work during the acceptance/installation process.  These will be 
taken into consideration as part of any request for decommissioning or removal. For artworks that have 
not been assigned a life span, the Staff Liaison to the Public Arts Commission may engage experts to 
assist in assigning the artwork a life span, based on the life expectancy of the artwork’s materials, 
fabrication methods and location of installation. 
 
ART DECOMMISSIONING APPLICATION PROCESS 
Preliminary Request 
Permanent artworks must be in place for a minimum of five years before decommissioning or removal 
requests will be considered. Decommissioning or removal requests may be submitted by one of the 
following groups: 



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

• Neighborhood organization 
• City Department 
• City Independent Board or Commission 
• City Council Member 
• Public Arts Commission Member 

 
The Public Arts Commission reviews a preliminary decommissioning or removal request from the 
applicant. If the Commission votes in favor of considering the request, the Staff Liaison will then work 
with the applicant to bring a full proposal before the Los Altos Public Arts Commission. 
 
DECOMMISSIONING AND REMOVAL FORM 
The Staff Liaison to the Los Altos Public Arts Commission will provide applicants with an application form 
which will serve as the applicant’s formal request for consideration by the Los Altos Public Arts 
Commission. 
 
REVIEW PROCESS 
The Los Altos Public Arts Commission will review requests and make a decision regarding the 
decommissioning and removal of the specific artwork. 
 
PUBLIC MEETING 
The Los Altos Public Arts Commission will hold at least one public meeting for the purpose of gathering 
community feedback on a proposed decommissioning or removal. The Commission may also decide to 
hold additional public meetings or gather community input through other methods. 
 
ARTIST INVOLVEMENT 
If artwork decommissioning or removal is recommended, the artist (if available) will be contacted and 
invited to provide input to the Los Altos Public Arts Commission. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Los Altos Public Arts Commission’s recommendation may include dismissing the request and/or 
modifying, moving, selling, donating, disposing or storing the artwork. 
 
PROCEEDS OF SALE 
If the Public Arts Commission recommends that the retired artwork be sold, any net proceeds from the 
sale shall be returned to an appropriate Public Art Program account to acquire (through the standard 
public art processes) or maintain other artworks for the City Public Art Collection. 
 
COSTS 
If decommissioning accommodates the applicant’s personal interests or project, they may be required 
to cover the costs of decommissioning. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE POLICIES AND REGULATIONS 
Decommissioning and removal of artwork will be done in a manner that complies with all other 
applicable City, State and Federal procedures, policies, and regulations. For example, decommissioning 
and removal actions must comply with applicable procedures and laws relating to the disposition of City 
property and with laws protecting artists’ rights. In addition, when artwork is to be removed for 
relocation or repair, only authorized representatives or contractors of the City are to handle the 
artwork. 



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

REVIEW CRITERIA 
The following criteria will be used for evaluating requests for decommissioning or removal. 
 
Stimulate Excellence in Urban Design and Public Arts 

• Is the artwork of inferior quality in concept or construction compared to other artwork 
commissioned by the City? 

• Is the artwork fraudulent or not authentic? 
• Is the artwork not unique and/or a reproduction? 
• Is the artist over-represented in the City’s collection? 
• Does the applicant wish to replace the artwork with a more appropriate work by the same 

artist? 
• Does the artist lack a significant or engaging body of work? 

 
Enhance Community Identity and Place 

• Is the artwork significantly less appropriate given changes in the function or character of the 
setting or the community? 

• Does the artwork lack historical value? 
• Is the artwork contrary to adopted policy and historic use or master plans? 
• Is the artwork incompatible with the current site design and function and/or the design and 

function of other possible sites? 
• Is the site going to be demolished or adapted, or is it not possible to successfully incorporate the 

artwork into redevelopment of the site? 
• Is no suitable new site available for the artwork? 

 
Contribute to Community Vitality 

• Is the site no longer publicly accessible? 
• Has the artwork been the source of significant adverse public reaction over at least five years? 
• Has the artwork failed to contribute to the overall community dialogue about civic issues? 
• Is the artwork unsafe? 

 
Involve a Broad Range of People and Communities 

• Has the applicant gathered input from various people and groups in considering removal of the 
artwork? 

• Does a broad range of people support the removal of the artwork? 
• Does the current artwork or site fail to meet ADA regulations and is it impossible to modify the 

artwork or site to do so? 
• Is the artwork a source of contention among various cultural communities? 
• Has the artwork failed to generate interest as a gathering place? 

 
Value Artists and Artistic Processes 

• Does the artist have an inappropriate cultural, geographic or artistic perspective? 
• Is the original artistic integrity of the artwork no longer intact or can it no longer be maintained? 
• Does continued display of the artwork undermine the artist’s intention or reputation? 
• Has the artist been involved in discussions about removal of the work? 
• Did someone other than a practicing artist create the artwork? 

 
 



 
G u i d e l i n e s  f o r  P u b l i c  A r t  i n  L o s  A l t o s — r e v .  8 / 2 0 1 8  
 

Use Resources Wisely 
• Does the artwork require excessive maintenance or repair, have faults of design or 

workmanship, or is repairing or securing the artwork impractical or unfeasible? 
• Are the terms of the original contracts unfulfilled? 
• Is the cost of repair or conservation more than fifty percent of the original commission costs or 

current appraised value? 
• Can the City no longer meet the donor’s restrictions (for gifts) or other obligations? 
• Does removal of the artwork provide an opportunity for a new project that could be supported 

privately? 
• Is another governmental or nonprofit agency better suited to provide care and maintenance? 


	10.23.18
	10-9-18
	Item 2. Environmental Consulting for 5150 ECR
	Item 3. Public Art Guidelines
	10.23.18 Public Art Guidelines
	City of Los Altos Public Art Guidelines--08202018




